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2019
14,958,346.29 100.49
72.812.75 0.49
14,885,533.54
o 100.00
2019
)
FORUM ONE VCG PRT
1 VIETNV-A 1,042,393 | 11.75 | 12,242,970.84 | 14.35 | 14,958,346.29 | 100.49
2019
1. | FPT CORP -SHS- 11.26
5| JOINT STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK FOR . 04
FOREIGN .
3. | MILITARY COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK 5.37
4. | PHUNHUAN JEWELRY JOINT STOCK COMPANY 5.32
5. | VINHOMES JOINT STOCK CO 4.87
6. | VINAVILK 4.86
7. | VIETTEL POST JSC 4.38
8. | AIRPORTS CORP - REGISTERED 3.84
9. | SAIGON CARGO SERVICE CORPORATION 3.71
10. | HOA PHAT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY 3.14
VIETNAM CONTAINER SHIPPING JOINT
111 stock ¢ 2.91
12. | FPT DIGITAL RETAIL JSC 2.87
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13. | PETROVIETNAM GAS JOINT STOCK COMPANY 2.65
14.| PHU TAI 2.60
15. E;QEEUONGWATERENVIRONMENTJOINT 2 58
16. | CAN DON HYDRO POWER JSC 2.56
17. | PHUOC HOA RUBBER PHR 2.49
18. | SAIGON BEER 2.26
19._ | VIET CAPITAL SECURITIES JSC 2.24
20. | VIETNAM NATIONAL PETROLEUM GROUP 2.02
21.| HO CHI MINH CITY SECURITIES 2.01
22. | PV POWER 1.68
23. | NET DETERGENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY 1.37
24| DAT XANH REAL ESTATE 1.22
25. | VIGLACERA CORP 1.19
26. | MASAN GROUP CORP 0.87
27. | VIETNAM TECHNOLOGICAL & COMM 0.83
28. | VIETNAM JS COMMERCIAL BANK 0.64
29. | PETROVIET.TECHNICALSERVICE PVS 0.36
30. | VINH HOAN 0.16

2019

2019
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2019
(2010 ) 31,923 3,399 37.19 3,959
(2011 ) 26,155 2,784 32.95 3,508
2012 17,837 1,899 24.80 2,640
2013 19,903 2,119 30.34 3,230
2014 21,839 2,325 37.26 3,967
2015 19,511 2,077 37.16 3,956
2016 17,367 1,849 36.09 3,842
10
2017 21,602 2,300 50.38 5,363
11
2018 20,659 2,199 63.23 6,731
12
2019 15,301 1,629 53.80 5,728
2018 19,077 2,031 60.93 6,487
10 16,528 1,760 55.09 5,865
11 15,994 1,703 54.29 5,780
12 15,535 1,654 53.35 5,680
2019 15,246 1,623 52.69 5,609
15,721 1,674 54.41 5,792
15,534 1,654 54.20 5,770
15,301 1,629 53.80 5,728
14,881 1,584 52.90 5,632
14,870 1,583 53.22 5,666
14,937 1,590 53.71 5,718
14,886 1,585 54.16 5,766
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0 6,900 858,300
2009 , ,
2010 30 0 6,900 858,300
0 64,600 793,700
2010 , ,
2011 30 0 64,600 793,700
0 74,500 719,200
2011 , ,
2012 30 0 74,500 719,200
0 63,300 655,900
2012 , ,
2013 30 0 63,300 655,900
0 69,800 586,100
2013 , ,
2014 30 0 69,800 586,100
0 61,100 525,000
2014 , ,
2015 30 0 61,100 525,000
0 43,900 481,100
2015 ? 3
2016 30 0 43,900 481,100
2826 0 52,350 428,750
2017 30 0 52,350 428,750
11
2017 0 102,050 326,700
2018 30 0 102,050 326,700
2858 0 42,277 284,423
2019 30 0 42,277 284,423
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2019 30
2019 2018
15,360,854 1,635,317

20,602,398 2,193,331
212,420 22,614 875,978 93,257
3,280 349 3,485 371
15,576,554 1,658,280 21,481,861 2,286,959
116,952 12,451 802,920 85,479
166,070 17,680 155,187 16,521
283,022 30,131 958,107 102,000
28,442,300 3,027,967 32,670,000 3,478,048
4,634,898 493,431
(13,148,768)  (1,399,818)  (16,781,144)  (1,786,521)
15,293,532 1,628,149 20,523,754 2,184,959
15,576,554 1,658,280 21,481,861 2,286,959
284,423 30,280 326,700 34,780

53.77 5,724 62.82 6,688
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2019 30
2019 2018
1,247,130 132,769
,12 57,137 6,083
1,424 152 534 57
1,424 152 1,304,801 138,909
(60,000) (6,388) (56,915) (6,059)
(47,515) (5,058) (42,250) (4,498)
(16,917) (1,801) (20,169) (2,147)
(120,624) (12,842) (158,296) (16,852)
(40,000) (4,258) (50,000) (5,323)
(151,907) (16,172) (181,233) (19,294)
(17,047) (1,815) (17,176) (1,829)
(56,650) (6,031) (46,022) (4,900)
(510,660) (54,365) (572,061) (60,902)
(509,236) (54,213) 732,740 78,008
(277,716) (29,566) 1,416,408 150,791
(2,078,452) (221,272)

(146) (16) 183 19
(2,356,314) (250,853) 1,416,591 150,810
(2,865,550) (305, 066) 2,149,331 228,818

3,306,633 352,024
(2,865,550) (305,066) 5,455,964 580,842
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2019 30
30 428,750 42,875,000 4,564,473 1,328,265 141,407 (22,943,348)  (2,442,549) 21,259,917 2,263,331
(102,050)  (10,205,000)  (1,086,424) 4,012,873 427,210 (6,192,127) (659,214)
2,149,331 228,818 2,149,331 228,818
3,306,633 352,024 3,306,633 352,024
30 326,700 32,670,000 3,478,048 4,634,898 493,431  (16,781,144)  (1,786,521) 20,523,754 2,184,959
(4,634,898) (493,431) 4,634,898 493,431
326,700 32,670,000 3,478,048 (12,146,246)  (1,293,089) 20,523,754 2,184,959
(42,277)  (4,227,700) (450,081) 1,863,028 198,338 (2,364,672) (251,743)
(509,236) (54,213) (509,236) (54,213)
(2,356,314) (250,853)  (2,356,314) (250,853)
30 284,423 28,442,300 3,027,967 (13,148,768)  (1,399,818) 15,293,532 1,628,149
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2019 30
2019 2018

(2,865,550) (305, 066) 2,149,331 228,818

(1,247,130) (132,769)

205 22 (210) 22)

10,883 1,159 (263,889) (28,094)

1,247,130 132,769

(975,394) (103,840)

2,885,376 307,177 6,619,520 704,714

277,716 29,566 (1,416,408) (150, 791)
2,078,452 221,272

2,387,082 254,129 6,112,950 650,785

(3,050, 640) (324,771)  (5,485,966) (584,036)

(3,050, 640) (324,771)  (5,485,966) (584,036)

(663,558) (70,642) 626,984 66,749

875,978 93,257 248,994 26,508

212,420 22,614 875,978 93,257
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45,000 0.075
0.01
3,750
60,000 2018 :56,915 2019
30 12,432 2018 4,932
0.02
1,000
16,917 2018 20,169 2019 30 2,006
2018 986
700 700
20
17,047 2018 17,176 2019 30
2,807 2018 1,381
0.70
120,624 2018 158,296 2019 30 8,903
2018 13,285
0.80
12,500
151,907 2018 181,233 2019 30 12,441
2018 15,018
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396,000
338,863 2019 30 2019 30
2018
2019 2018
2018 30 12,804,408 15,967,500
2,556,446 4,634,898
2018 30 15,360,854 20,602,398
2019 30
2017 10
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2019 30
2019 30
- 15,360,854 - 15,360,854
- 15,360,854 - 15,360,854
2018 30
- 20,602,398 - 20,602,398
- 20,602,398 - 20,602,398
2016
12
2019 2018 30
2019 2018
212,420 875,978
2019 30 212,420 2018 875,978 3,841 2018
3,841 1,978 2018 1,975 209,807 2018
873,223
2019 30 2018 30

81/191



10

11

2019

284,423

30

2018

326,700

10

2001

100

81

82/191

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 20
3.0
2019 2018
28,442,300 32,670,000
326,700 428,750
(42,277) (102,050)
284,423 326,700
10
50
50



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 30 2018
12
2019 2018
©) 15,293,532 20,523,754
@) - 137,513
15,293,532 20,661,267
()
©) 284,423 326,700
o 284,423 326,700
0 53.77 63.24
53.77 62.82
©
(a
2018
30 137,513
(b 53.77 2018  63.24 15,293,532
2018 20,661,267 2019 30 284,423 2018 326,700
(c 53.77 2018  62.82
15,293,532 2018 20,523,754 2019 30
284,423 2018 326,700
13
(a
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2019 2018
83.46 94.07
12.98 5.93

3.56 -

100.00 100.00
2019 2018

17.79 13.24

14.54 8.78

10.46 12.08

7.31 11.38
6.73 5.94
6.64 7.15
3.58 4.77
3.56 -
3.19 0.76
3.06 8.75
2.61 3.28
2.39 7.28
2.27 2.31
1.67 -
1.22 3.96

- 3.58

- 0.81

87.02 94.07

12.98 5.93
100.00 100.00

2019 30
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2019 30
15,360,854
15,360,854
212,420 212,420
15,573,274 15,573,274
116,952 116,952
122,187 4,983 38,900 166,070
239,139 4,983 38,900 283,022
2018 30
20,602,398 20,602,398
875,978 875,978
21,478,376 21,478,376
802,920 802,920
113,904 1,233 40,050 155,187
916,824 1,233 40,050 958,107
14
15
16
2019 30 2019 27 337,180
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ag at 30 April 2019

20615 2018
Notes &S [
ASSETS
Financial assets at far valoe through profit or loss 6.7 15,360,854 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 6.7 - 20,602,398
Cash and cash equivalents 8 212420 875978
CHher assets 1,280 3485
TOTAL ASSETS 15,576,554 21.481.861
LIABILITIES
Redemptions payable 116,952 802,920
Accoumnts payable and accrued liabilities 5 166,070 155,187
TOTAL LIABILITIES 283,022 958,107
EQUITY
Umitholders® capital 9 28,442,300 32,670,000
Reserves on available-for-sale financial assels - 4,634,898
Deficit [ 13.148.768) (16781144
TOTAL EQUITY 12 15,293,532 20,523.754
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 15,576,554 21,481 861
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 9 284,423 326,700
MNET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 12 53.77 5282

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

201% 2018
Motes Uss LI5S
INCOME
Dividend income - 1,247,130
Reversal of over-accmal of restructuning cost 512 - 57,137
Bank inderest 1.424 534
1,424 1.304.801
EXPENSES
Administration and trustee fees 5 ( 60,000 ( 56,915)
Audit fees ( 47.515) ( 42,250
Custody fees 5 ( 16,917) { 20,169)
Distnibution fees 5 [ 120,624 ) { 158,206)
Legal fees [ 40,000 { 50,0000
Management fees 5 { 151,507) { 181,233
Transfer agent fees 5 ( 17,047} ( 17,176)
Cther operaling expenses [ 36,650 [ 46,022)
[ 510660 [ 572 061)
MET (LOSS)VINCOME BEFORE INVESTMENT
AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES { 509,236 ) T32.740
INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE
DIFFERENCES
Net realised (loss) gain on financial assets at fair
value throwgh profit or loss { 277.7186) 1416408
Met change in unrealized (loss Y gain on firancial
assets at fair valve through profit or loss { 2.078452) -
Met exchange (loss)/'gain { 146 ) 183
{ 2356314} 1.416.591
MET (LOSS)GAIN FOR THE YEAR {  2.865550) 2,149,331
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Nel change in fair value of available-for-sale
fimncial asseis - 3,306,633
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSSYINCOME
FOR THE YEAR {  2865550) 5,455,964

The accompanying notes are an infegral pan of these financial statements,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

Reserves on
Number of 1, oy iders’ availablefor- : :
units ial sale Birasicsal Defict  Total equity
outstanding Capal  paie fandc
ARZENS
USss s Uss 5%
WNates 9 MNales 9 MWoles 6
At 30 April 2017 428,750 42,875,000 1,328,265 ( 22,943348) 21259917
Change in equity
Redemption of umits ~ ( 102,050)  (10,205,000) . 4012873 (6,192,127)
et gain 5 . - 2,149,331 2,149,331
Oher
comprehensive
income - - 3,306,633 - 3,306,633
AL 30 April 2018 326,700 32670000 4,634,898 ( 16781,144) 20,523,754
Effect on adoption of
International Financial
Reporting, Standard 9 = - [ 4.634,398) 4,634,898 5
As restated 326,700 32,670,000 - 12,146,246) 20,523,754
Change in equity
Redemption of units {42277y  ( 4,227.700) - 1,863,028  {2.364,672)
Met loss before
investment and
e hange
differences - - - 509236) (  50%2346)
Met investment and
exchange
differences - - - [ 2356.314) ( 2356314)
AL 30 April 2019 284,423 28,442,300 - { 13.148.768) 152933532

The accompanying notes are an infegral par of these financial statements,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

2019 2018
Notes uss Uss
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Met (loss)/gain for the year [ 2.865550) 2,149,331
Adjustmenis for
Income from avallable-for-sale Ainancial assets - i 1,247.130)
Drecrease/{increase) in other assels 205 { 2100
Increase/{decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued habilities 10,883 i 263.889)
Dividend received - 1,247,130
Purchase of available-for-sale financial asseis - { 975,394)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss 2885376 6,619,520
Met realised loss/{gain) on financial assefs at fair
value throngeh profit or loss 277,716 { 1.416.408)
Met change in unrealized loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 2,078.452 -
Net cash flows generated from operating activities
2.387.082 6,112,950
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Payments on redemption of units [ 3.050,640) i 5485066
Met cash flows used in financing activities [ 30506400 { 5485966
NET (DECREASEVINCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS [ 663.558) 626,984
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year 875,978 248,994
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 3 212,420 875,978

The accompanying notes are an infegral pant of these financial statements,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

1. THE TRUST

Precions Trust (the “Trust™) is an open-ended nmbrella unit trost constituted by a master trust deed
dated 22 May 2007 under the laws of the Cayman [slands, regulated as a nmtual fond under the Mutnal
Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, entered into between [1Q EQ Management Bermuda
Limited {the “Manager”, previously known as Meore Management {Bermuda) Limited) and Bank of
Bermuda (Cayman) Limited (the “Former Trustee”™). The Trust fas been established as an umbrella
trust with the abality to issue separate series of units, each relating to a separate series (rust. Each series
of units may be designated in such base currency as the Manager in its sole discretion may determine.

Vietnam Infrastmucture Fund (the * Series Trust™) was constituted as a sepamte senes of units of the
Trust on 22 May 2007, As at 30 Apnl 2019 and 2018, the Series Trust is the only sertes trust in
Evistence.

Pursuant to a Deed of Retirement and Appoiniment dated 22 December 2016 and the Amended and
Restated Master Tnestee Deed, the former trustee was replaced by CIBC Bank and Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™), Pursuant (o the administration agreement, BNY Mellon Fund
Management {Cayman) Limited was appointed the Series Trust's administrator (the * Administrator™ ),
who has appointed The Bank of New York Mellon, Singapore Branch to be the Series Trust's sub-
admimistrator (the “Sub-Administrator™) pursuant (o 3 sub-admimistration agreement between the
Addministrator and the Sub-Administrator to carry out the day-to-day admimistration and transfer
agency services of the Series Trust. Pursuant to the Global Custedy Agreement, the Trustee has
appointed The Bank of New York Mellon as custodian (the * Custodian™) of all securities and cash at
any time delivered to the Custodian in respect of the Series Trust.

The Serigs Trust's investment objective is to act as a feader fund such that all or substantially all of

the aszets of the Series Tmst are invested in Forum One-VOG Partners Vietnam Fund (the “VVEF™).
As at April 30, 2019, the Series Trust is fully invested in VVF shares.

2z CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

Bew '._1| 3

1 May 2018

The Series Trust applied for the first time, cenain standards and amendments, which are effective for
anmual periods on or after | May 2018, A number of other new standards are also effective from |
May 2018 but they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust's financial statements.

The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment 15 described below

Fiermational Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS") 9 Financfal Tnstrigrents

The Series Trost adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instrumens on 1 May 2018, IFRS 9 replaces [AS 39
Fimancial Inshrments: Recogmition and Measyurement and amrodinces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. TFRS % is not applicable to items
that have already been derecognized & 1 May 20138, the date of imtial application.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Tnternational Finaneial Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) 9 Finane fal Fnstrments (contined)

) Classification and measurentent
The Series Trust has assessed the classification of financial mmstruments as at the date of motial

application and has applied such classification retrospectively. Based on that assessment:

(1) Listed equity investments previously classified as AFS financial assets are now classified and
measured as fimancial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Fimancial assets previously classified as loans and receivables are held to collect contractual
cash flows and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.
Thus, such instnoments continue (o be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

(i) The classification of financial liabilities under IFRS 9 remains broadly the same as under [AS
3. The main impact on measurement from the classification of liabilities under IFRS 9
relates to the element of gaims or losses for financial Labilities designated as at FVPL
attributable to changes in credit risk. TFRS 9 requires that such element be recognised in other
comprehensive income (OCT), unless this treatment creates or enlarges an accouming
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all gains and losses on that liability {including the
effects of changes in credit risk) should be presenied in profit or loss. The Series Trust has
ot designated any financial liabilities at FVPL. Therefore, this requirement has not had an
impact on the Series Trust.

["fy Tmpeivment

IFF.S 9 requires the Series Trust to record expected credit losses (ECL=) on all of its debt securities,
loans and trade receivables, either ona 1 2-month or lifetime basis. Giventhe limited exposure of
the Series Trust to credit risk, this amendment has not had a material impact on the financial
statements. The Series Trust does not hold receivables with financing component and that have
maturities of more than 12 months at amortised cost, Therefore, it has adopted an approach similar
to the general approach to ECLs.

e} Hedge accouniing
The Series Trost has nol apphied hedge accounting umder [AS 39 nor wall it apply hedge
accounting under [FRS 9.

lmpact of adoption of [FRS 9
The classification and measuremert requirements of IFRS 9 have been adopted retrospectively as of
the date of initial application on | May 2018, however, the Series Trust has chogen to take advantage

ofthe option nat to restate comparatives, Therefore, the pror vear figures are preserded and measured
under IAS 39,
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2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (contined)

Tllemll::rm tahle shows the nnguml nmasm‘emerl categories in accordance with 1AS 39 and the
new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Series Trust's financial assets and financial
habalities as at 1 May 2018,

Finand al assets
1AL 39 IFRS 9
measurement IFRS 9 measurement
1 Miay 2018 IAS 39 dassilication HES dassification HES
Available-for-sale
financial assets Available for sale 20,602,398 FVPL 20,602 398
Cash and cash
equivalents Looans and receivables 875,978  Amortised cost 375978
Finandal liabilities
IAS 39 IFRS 9
measurement IFRS 9 measurement
1 May 2018 1AS 39 dassification HEKS  classification HES
Redemptions Other financial
payable liabilities 802,920 Amonised cost 802,920
Accounts payable
and accrned Other financial
liahiliries liabilities 155,187 Amortised cost 155,187

Im ling with the characteristics of the Series Truat's financial instruments as well as its approach to
their management, the Series Trust made new designations on the date of initial application. [FRS 9
heas not resulted in changes in the carrying amount of the Series Trost’s financial mstruments due to
changes in measurement categonies. All financial assets that were classified as available for sale under
TAS 39 are now classified as FVPL under IFRS 9. All financial assets (hat were classified as loans and
receivables and measured at amortised cost continue to be measured 3t amontised cost.

Inaddition, the application of the ECL model ander IFES 9 Ins not significanily changed the carrying
amounts of the Series Trust's amortised cost fimncial assets, The carrving amounts of amortised cost
instruments continued (o approximate these instruments’ fair values on the date of transition after
transitioning to [FRS 9,

There are noe other new standards and amendment s to existing standards that are effective for anmal
periods beginning on 1 May 2018 that kave a material effect on the financial statemenis of the Master

Fumil.

Nefw am:l amended standards and unerpretanam izsued but not vet effective for the financial vear

There are no L-.[&ndm‘ds and ITE Erpraauom tlnl are issued, g not vet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Series Trust's firancial statements that will have an impact on the Series Trus.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Series Trust's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assunyions that affect the reponed amonnts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
oufcomes that could require a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or labality
affected in future periods.

Judgements
Inthe process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which Iave the most significant effect on the amowns recognised in the financial
statements:

(ot Concert

The Series Trust’s management has made an assessment of the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern and is satisfied that the Series Trust has the resources to continne in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant douldt upon the Series Trust’s ability to continue as a going concem. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Taxes

Uncertaindies exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax
laws on foreign withholding tax. Giventhe wide range of international investments, differences arising
between the actual investment income and the assumptions made, or future changes 1o such
assumptions, conld necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already recorded The Series Trust
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimares, for possible consequences of andits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are based
on varons factors, such as experience of previons tax andits and diffenng interpretations of fax
regulations by the taxable engity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may anse o a2 wide vanety of 1ssues depending on the conditions prevaling in the respective
investment s domicile, As the Fund assesses the probabality for litigation and subsequent cash ot flow
with respect o taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised,

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS issued by the Infermational
Accounting Standards Board (“TASB™), and interpretations issued by the Infernational Financial
Reporting Interpretation Commitiee (IFRIC™) of the 1ASB. The accounting policies adopled are
corgistent with those of the previcus financial vear, other than as disclosed in Note 2.

Basis of preparation
The fimancial statements of the Series Trust have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at FVPL, that have been measured at fair value. The firancial statements
are presented in United States Dollar (“USS™) and are rounded 1o the nearest dollar, except where
cdherwize indicated.

As applicable for the cument year and as Nother explained in the preceding basis of preparation

paragraphs, the significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust in the preparation of these
financial statemenis are as follows:
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instriments

In the current vear, the Series Trust has adopted IFRS 9 Fivancial Tnstruments, See Note 2 for an
explanation of the impact. Comparative figures for the vear ended 30 April 2018 have not been
restated. Therefore, firancial instnwments in the comparative pericd are still accounted for in
accordance with TAS 39

i} Classiffcarion

Palicy effective from | May 2008 (FFRS 9

Inaccordance with IFRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its fimancial assets and financial liatilities at
initial recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

Financial assets

The Series Trust classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or
meagured al FVPL on the basis of both:

= the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and;

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel.

Fincncicl assets measured af amoriised cost

A debt instnoment is measured al amornised cost iF it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal amount otstanding,  The Series Trust inchudes in this category cash amd cash
equivalents.

Financial azsets measured at FVYPL

A financial asset 15 measured o FVPL if

(1) s comtracinal terms do not give rise (o cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest (*SPPI™) on the principal amount cutstanding or;

{27 1t 15 mod held within a business model whose objective 15 either to collect contractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell or;

{3) @ initial recognition. it is frrevecably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise anse from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases,

The Series Trust includes in this category, investment in VVF shares.

Financial liabilities

(i Financial lfabilities measrved ar FVPL
A financial liability is measured at FVPL if it meets the definition of held for trading. The
Series Trust does nol have any financial liability in this category as al yearend.

B Finamefad Habilities measured af amortized cost
This category includes all firancial liatalities, other than those measured at fair value through
profit or loss, The Series Trost inclndes inthis category its redemptions payable and short -term
payables,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Einancial instruments {continued)

(1) Classiffcation (continued)

EEEEE ﬁﬂkﬂt&ﬂ hg!‘gm I Mgy 2008 (148 39
The Series Trua classifies its investments as financial assets and financial liabilities at indtial
recognilion into the following, calegories in accordance with [AS 3%

Available for sale

Axvailable for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in listed equity investments.
Ecquity investments classified as avalable for sale are those wioch are nether classified as held
for trading nor designated as at fair value theough profit o less, The Series Trust includes in this
category investment in VVF shares.

FLoans and receivatles

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not queded in an active markel. The Series Trust includes in this category cash and cash
edquivalents.

Cither financial fabilines

This category includes all financial liabilities, ofher than those classified as held for trading, The
Series Trust includes in this category amounts relating to redemptions payable and other short-
term payables,

(ii) Recogmition
The Series Trust recognises a financial asset or financial labality when, and only when it becomes
a party 10 the comtracinal provisions of the instrument.

All purchases and sales of fimancial instruments that require debvery within the tmeframe
established by regulation or market convention are recognised on the trade date, which isthe date
on which the Series Trust commils to purchase or sell the investiment,

(i) Srittal measiement
Fimancial assets at FVPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. All
tramsaction costs for such investments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Fimancial assets {other than those classified as at FVPL) are measured initially at their fair value
plus any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue,

Realized gains and losses on dispesals of financial instroments are calculated using the weighted

average method and are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as “net realized gains'
{losses) on investments at Fair value through profit or loss”,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {confinmed)

(V) Swhsequent measirentent
After initial measurement, the Series Trust measures financial instruments which are classified as
FVPL at fair value, Subsequent changes of those financial imstruments are recorded in “net
unrealised gains or losses on investments at far value throogh profit or less” . Dividend eamed or
paid of these instruments are recorded separately in “Dividend income”, respectively. The fair
value of investments is based on their quoded market prices on a recognised exchange at the
stgtement of financial posinon date without any deduction for estimat ed fulure selling costs.

Financial liabilities, other than those classified at FVFPL, are measured at amorised cost using
effective inderest method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the habilities are
derecognised, as well as the through the amortisalion process.

The effective interest method (ETR) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a Anancial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the interest income or inferest
experse in profit or logs over the relevant period. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated fiture cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability 1o the gross carrving amount of the financial asset or to the amortised
cost of the financial liability. When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Series Trust
estimates cash flows considenng all conractual terms of the financial instroments, but does not
consider expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral pan of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums of discounts,

(V) Derecognition
A financial assel (or, where applicable. a pant of a fimancial asset or a pant of a group of similar
fimancial assets) is derecogmsed where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has
assumed an obligation to pay the recenved cash Aows i full wathow! matenal delay to a third party
under a pass-through arrangement and the Series Trust has:

(a) Transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
Or

(b} Weither transferred nor retained substantially all the rigks and rewards of the asset, but has
transfierred control of the asset
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(vi) Derecognition (contimmed)

When the Senes Trust has transferred s right (o recetve cash flows from an assel (or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement ), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the assel is recognised to the
extert of the Series Trust's contining involvement in the asset. Inthat case, the Series Trost also
recognises an associated labality, The transferred asset and the associated hability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and cbligations that the Series Trust has retained.

The Series Trust derecogmises a financial lability when the obligation under the lisbility is
discharged, cancelled or expired

Impairment of financial assels

Policy effective from 1 May 2018 (TFRS 9}

For fimancial assets al amortised cost, impairment allowances are recognised under the general
approach where expected credit losses are recognised intwo stages. For credil exposures where there
heas nod been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Master Fund 15 required
o provide for credit losses that resull from possible default events within the next 12 months, For
those credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit [osses expected over the remmining life of the
exposire irrespective of the timing of the defaudt.

Policy effective before | May 2008 [TAS 39

The Series Trust assessed at each reponting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired, A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have ocourred afier
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estumated fulure cash flows of the Anancial asset or the group of Anancial assets that can be reliably
estimated

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant fimancial difficulty, default or delingquency in interest or principal paymends, the probability
thaat they will enter bankroptey or other finmncial recrganisation and where observable data indicate
(hat there 15 a measurable decrease in the estimated futire cash flows, such as clanges in arrears or
econamic conditions that correlate with defanlis. Ifthere is objective evidence that an impairment 1oss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding futire ECLs that have not vet
been incumed) discounted using the asset’s original EIR. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
credit loss expense.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Policy effective before | May 2008 (TAS 39 (continued)

Impaired debts together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of fiture recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Series
Trust, [Fa previons wiite-ofF is later recovered, the recovery 15 credited to the credd loss expense,

Imterest income on impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest wsed 1o discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the imparmend loss,

3 w1 10718
The presentation and functional currency of the Series Trost is the United States Dollar, The functional
currency reflects the currency in which the Series Trust primarily generates and expends cash from its
activities,

Transactions during the vear in currencies cther than the functional currency are recorded at the rates
of exchange prevaling o the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Realised and unrealised exchange gains or losses on foreign comency transactions are clarged or
credited to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as net exchange gains or losses,

The rate of exchange in effect at 30 April 2019 was USS1=JPY111.375 (2018: US31=JPY109.425)
and USS1I=GBPO.T6TOTT (2018: USS 1= GBPK 726032,

Relaied parties
A party is considered related to the Series Trust ift

{a) the party isa person or a cloge member of that person’s family and that person
{i) has control or joint control over the Series Trust,
(i) has significant influence over the Series Trust, or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust;
or
{b) the party is an enity where any of the following conditions applies:
{i) the entity and the Series Trust are members of the same Group;
{ii} one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the entity):
(iii} the entity and the Series Trust are joint ventures of the same third party;
{iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
enlaty,
{v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Seres
Trust or an entity related to the Series Trust;
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a), and
{vii) a person idernified in (a){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity).
(viil) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a pan, provides key nanagement personnel
services to the Series Trust or 1o the parent of the Series Trust.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cashand cash equivalents are defined as cash at bank. time depogits with an criginal maturity of three
mienths or less, and shor-tevm hghly quid imnvestments readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and sulgect to msigmficant nsk of changes i value. Cash al bank 15 camed at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in other cwrency are translated into USS at the applicable
rate of exchange at the reporting date,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents as defined above, are net of
outstanding bank overdrafts, when applicable,

Umnitholders” capital
Redeemable umts are classified as equaty mstraoments when:
¢ The redeemable unitz entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Series Trust’s net assets in
the event of the Series Trust"s liquidation.
*  The redeemable units are in the class of instruments that is subordinate Lo all other classes of
instruments,
s All redeemable unitz in the class of mstruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features.
+  The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or ancther
financial asset ofher than the holder’s mghis 1o a pro rata share of the Senes Trost's nel assels,
# The total expected cash flows amributable to the redeemable units over the life of the
instrument are tased substantially on the profit or loss, the change inthe recognised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Series
Trust over the life of the instroment.

In addition to the instroment having all the above features, the Series Trst must have no other
financial instrument or contract that has:

«  Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assets or the change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognised net assets of the
Series Trust, and

*  The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residoal retum to the redeemable
unitholders.

The Series Trust continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable panicpating units, 1f the
redeemable participating units cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions set out to be
classified as equity, the Series Trust will reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them at
fair value at the dafe of reclassification, with any differences from the previons carmying amount
recognised in equity. Ifthe redeemable units subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions
to be classified as equity, the Series Trust will reclassify them as equity instruments and measure them
at the carrving amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification

The issnance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable participating units are accounted for as
equity transactions. Upon issuance of units, the consideration received is included in equity,

Mo gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance, redemption or cancellation of the Series Trust’s own equily instruments.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pl Zann o los cal assets of Far valne i or loss
This item includes ¢ £ in the fair value of financial assefs designed upon initial recognition as “at
fair value through profit or loss” and excludes mterest and dividend income.

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial instrumengs for the period
and from reversal of prior period's wnrealised gains and losses for fimncial instruments which were
realised in the reporting penod.

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit
or loss are caleulated on a weighted average basis, They represent the difference between the financial
instrament's indtial carryving amonnt and disposal amous.

3 FEES

Adlministration and trostee fees

The Administrator 15 entitled to receive an administration fee at a mimimum fee of USS45,000 per
anmmim or a fee at the rate of 0.075% per annum of the net asset value acerued on and calenlated as at
each valuation day if such amount exceeds the minimum fee, which is pavable monthly in arrears.
The Trustee is entitled to receive a trustee fee equal to 0,01%% per anmum of the net assel value acoued
on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable quanerly in amears, subject to a minimum
quarterly fee of USS3,750.

The admimstration and tmstee fees for the year totaled US360.000 (2018: USS56.915), of which
1IS512,432 is payable at 30 April 2019 (2018: US84,932) and i included in accounts payable and
accried liabilities,

Custody fees
The Custodian is entitled to recerve a fee atl the rate of 0.02%% per annum of the net asset value, accred

om and caloulated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrear, subjec to a nuinimuom fee
of USS1,000 per month. The Custodian is also entitled to receive transaction fees and other ancillary
fees,

The custody fees for the year totaled USS16.917 (2018: USS20,16%), of which USS2,006 is payable
at 30 Aprl 2009 (2018: US5986) and is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities,

Transfer agent fees
The Administrator is entitled to atransfer agent fee of USST00 per month for the Senes Trust, USST00

per month per Urnitholder and a transaction fee of US320 per transac tion.

The transfer agent fees for the vear totaled USS17,047 (20018: USS17,176), of which US52,807 is
payable at 30 Apml 2019 (2018; US51,381) andis included in accounts payable and accroed liakilities.

Distribution fee

Ace Securities Co, Limated (the * Agent Company and Distributor™ ) is entitled to receive a distribution
fee at the rate of 0.70% per anmm of the net asset value, accrued on and caleulated as at each valuation
day and payable monthly in arrears.

The distribution fee for the year totaled USS120,624 (2018: US8158,296) of which US$8,903 is

payable at 30 April 2019 (2018 USS13,285) and is included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilities.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
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For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

5, FEES (continued)

Management fee

The Manager i enfitled (o receive a management fee of 0.80%% per anmmm of the net assed value
accrued on and calculated as a1 each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears, subject to a
mommoam monthly fee of USS12, 500,

The management fee for the year totaled USS151,%07 (2018: USS181,233) of which USS12.441 is
payable at 30 Aprl 2019 (2018: US815.018) and is included in accounts payable and accrued
liabilittes.

According to the offering documents of the Series Trust, the costs and expenses in connection with
the Restrocturing of the Series Trust effective on 29 December 2016 was estinmted to be USS 396,000,
Such costs and expenses are amonlized during the first three financial years following the
Restructuring date in the Series Trust’s published NAV. The aciual restructuring costs were
1755338,863, and of which none has been amortized for the year ended 30 April 2019, and nothing is
payable at 30 Apnl 2019 (2018; Nil),

&, FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR. LOSS

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Financial assets at FVPL (30 April 2018 Available-
for-sale financial assets), at cost 12804 408 15,967,500
Umreabised gains 2556446 4,634,898
Fimancial assets at FVPL (30 April 2018: Available-
for-sale financial assets) 15,360,854 20,602,398

As at 30 Apnl 2019, the financial assets at FVPL held by the Series Trost consist of VVE shares.

T. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION
Fair value measurements are disclesed by level of the following fair value measurement hierarcly:

o Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idertical assets or liabilities {level 1},

o Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable (level 2).

+  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable (level 3 )

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety should be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that 1= significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair
value measurerment in its entirety, If a fair value measurement nses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
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For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

T. FaAIR VALUE ESTIMATION {continued)

The determination of whatl constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgement by the Manager.
The Manager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated. reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are
actively mvolved in the relevant market.

The shares are valued based on quoted market prices, which is based on the daily NAV/share as
published in the Luxembowrg Stock Exchange, The VVF shares (Class A shares in Forum One) were
only initially avaitable to original holders of Vietnam Infrastructure Private Equity {* VNI") shares but
may, at the underlying Manager's discretion, be subscribed for by new investors. The Series Trust and
a mumber of other investors were holders of the VNI shares, holdings in a private equity portfolio
listed on the Alternative Investment Market (“AIM™) which was fully redeemed owver the period to
Cwctober 2017, As the marketing of the VVF shares is therefore restricted they are classified within
level 2. The Series Trust does not adjost the quoted prices for these instruoments as they are redeeneable
inthe normal course of business at 3 business days’ notice.

The table below analyvzes the financial assets at 30 April 200% by the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

Level | Level 2 Lviel 3 Total

30 April 2019 USsS ss 5% Uss
Financial assets at FVPL
Investment in VVEF shares - 15,360,854 - 15360854

- 15, 360,854 - 15360354
30 April 2018
Avaifable-for-sale financicl assets
Investment in VVF shares - 20,602,398 - 20,602,398

- 20,602,395 - 20,602,398

Investment in Cpen-ended UCITS compliant fond
The Manager considers the quoted price of the VVF shares to be an approprate measure of its Fair

value. The Manager has traded in the VVF shares on behalf of the Series Trust a number of times
since the restructuring in December 2016, trades which have always been made at the quoted price.
The quated price of the VVF shares 15 used as an input into measuring the fair value. In measunng the
fair value, consideration is paid (o any transactions in the shares of the Underlying Fund. Since there
iz no adjustment needed to the net asset value and the level of trading in the fund, the Series Trust
classifies the imvestment in Underlying Fund a5 Level 2.

The Series Trust did not hold any Level 3 securities during the year.

Dunng the yvear ended 30 April 2019 and 2008, there was no transfer of fair value measurement
between Level 1 and Level 2 nor transfer into or om of Level 3.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

&. CaASH aND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2019 2018
Uss U5
Cash at bark 212,420 875973

As at 30 April 2019, the cash at bank of US3212,420 (2018: USS875,978) represents an interest
bearing Japanese Yen deposit of JPYV3.841 (2018 JPY3,841), Great British Pound deposi of
GBP1,978 (2018: GBP1,975) and United States dollar deposit of USS209,807 (2018: USS873,223),
Al deposits are placed with The Bank of New York Mellen, an affiliate company of the Trustee.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cashand cash equivalents comprise solely of cash at
bank at 30 April 2019 and 2018,

& UNITHOLDERS CAPITAL

Subscription of units. Umts will be available for subscnption at the apphcable subscnption price on
each Dealing Day, which is the 20th calendar day of each month providing that if such day is not a
Business Day thenthe Business Day immediately following such day, commencing in Febrwary 2017,
except as descnbed in the Offering Memorandum, The subscoption price per Umt will be the Net
Asset Value per Unit as at such Dealing Day. The sales charge as described herein will alzo be charged
o the applicants.

The Units will carry a sales charge of up to 3.0% (not including local consumption or other taxes) of
the subscoplion price per Unit unless waived by the Distribitor, Such sales charge shall be retained
bry the Distributor of its delegate,

Repurchase of nnits. Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at each
Fepurchase Day, which is each Dealing Day andor such other day or davs as the Manager may from
time to time determine in respect of the Series Trusgt. Unitholders may only submit a repurchase
request in respect of settled Units, for which payment has been received in respect of their intial
purchase.

Urits may be repurchased by reference (o a number of Unts or a cash valne. The munimiom Units or
cash value that may be submitted for repurchase in respect of a Repurchase Day a8 1 Unit or USD 100,
as applicable or such other number of Units or cash amount as the Manager may determine generally
or in any particular case. There is no requirement that a Unitholder must kold a minimum mmber or
value of Units,

Transactions in units for the yvear ended 30 April 2019 are as follows:

2009 2018
Us% USss
Units in issue;
284,423 wts {2018 326,700 units) 28,442,300 32,670,000
Umits Lmits
Number of issued and fully paid units:
Al the begimming of the year 326,700 428,750
Redeemed during the year { 42,277} { 102,050
Al the end of the yvear 284,423 326,700
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. UNITHOLDERS' CAPITAL {contined)

The Trustee will. when required to do so by the terms of the Amended and Restated Master Trust
Deed or at the request in writing of the unitholders registered as holding units the aggregate net asse
value per umit of which is not less than one<enth of the net asset value of all series trusts 1f what 1=
proposed is a unitholders resolution or at the request in writing of unitholders registered as holding
ot less than one-tenth in mumber of units of the relevant Series Trust if what is proposed is a Series
Trust resclution, convene a meeting of all unitholders or unitholders of a Series Trust, as the case may
be, at such time and place set forth in the notice convening the meeting.

Ay director or other authorised official of the Trustee or of the Manager will be entitled to attend and
speak at any meeting. The quorum requirements will be two umtholders unless there 15 only one
wnitholder in which case the quorim will be that one unitholder.

Al any meeting any resolution put (o the vote of the meeting will be decided by a poll which will be
taken in writing and if approved by unitholders holding units the aggregate net assel value per unit of
which is at least 50 percent of the nel asset value of all series trusts if what is proposed is a unitholders
resolution or the unitholders holding at least one half in number of units of the relevant Series Trust
in issue if what is proposed is a Series Trust resolution, the result of a pell will be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting.

0. TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cavman Islands, the Trust and the Series Trust will not be liable for amye
profits or capital gains tax in the Cayman [slands,

The Trust has received an underaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in
accordance with Section 31 ofthe Trusts Law (2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands that, for a period
of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Tmst, any legislation eracted in the Cayman Islands
imposing tax computed on profits or mcome, or computed on camial assels, gans or apprecision or
any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall not be applicable to the Trs,

Income from other junsdictons, including distributions from secunties issued in ather countnes, may
be subject to withholding or capital gains taxes imposed by such countries, Withholding taxes on
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country™s tax rates.

11. DISTRIBUTION

Mo distribution was paid or payable dunng the vear ended 30 April 20019 (2018: Mil),
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12. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSET VALUE PER THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

2019 2018
LISs Uss
Mt assets attnbutable o unitholders per
the financial statements (see {c) below) 15,293,532 20,523,754
Adjustment (o provisions (see (a) below) - 137,513
Met assets used for calculating published
net asset value per unit at last valuation date
{zee (b} below) 15,293,532 20,661,267
Mumber of units in issue per the Gnancial stalements
{see (c) below) 284,423 326,700
Published number of wuts in 1ssue (see (b) below) 284.423 326,700
Published net asset value per unit in issue
(see (b below) £3.77 63,24
Met asset value attributable to unitholders per unit in
issme per the financial statements {see (¢ below) 53.97 62.82
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

12. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSET VALUE PER THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE (coniinued

{a)  The Series Trast's experses are recorded in line with the requirements of IFRS, except for
restructuring cost, which have been amortized in accordance to the Series Trust’s offering
documents instead of expensed i accordance to IFRS requirement. Hence, the adjustment for
vear ended 30 April 2018 is pertaining to the amontized restructhuring cost of US5137,513,

(b} The calculation of published net asset value per unit of USS53.77 (2018: US363.24 ) is based on
the net assef value of USS515,293 532 (2018: US320,661,267) and on the total mumber
of 284,423 units issued ag at 30 April 2009 (2018 326,700}

{c}  Thecalculation of net asset value anributable to unitholders per the financial statements per wmit
of US853.77 (2018 USS62.82) is based on the net asset value of USS 15,293,532 (2018:
U5320.523,754) and on the total number of 284,423 units issued as at 30 Aprl 2019 (2018;
326,700 units).

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

The Series Trust's investing activities expose it to varions types of risk which are associated with the
financial instruments in which it invests in. The most important types of financial risk to which the
Series Trust 15 exposed are market nsk. credit nsk, and hqudity nsk. Marzet nisk mcludes forengn
currency nsk, price risk and interest rate risk.

The investment management policy of the Series Trust is determined through the following process:
The Manager provides non-discretionary mamagement of the Series Trust's assets and primarily will
enEUre investments are consistent with the investment oljectives of the Series Trust and & responsible
for taking reasonable steps and exercising all due diligence to aveid the property of the Series Trust
being used or invested contrary to the investment and borrowing limitations sef oul in the Trust Dreed
and the Offering Memorandum. The Board of the Manager has overall responsibility for the
management of the Series Trust structure (o the extent of its responsibilities as detailed in the relevant
Trust Deed and Offering Memorandum.

The investment management policy is non-discretionary; the Series Tmst will invest virually all of
its assets in the VVF shares, which as a result. the performance of the Senes Trust will depend almost
entirely on the performance of VVF.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments ontstanding at the reporting date and the nsk
management policies employved by the Series Trust are discussed below.

(a)Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of financial assets will fluctnate as a result of changes in market
prices whet her those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual assets or factors affecting
all assets in the market. Market risk is of a general nature, affecting all types of investment. The trend
in the prices of transferable securities is determined mainly by the trend in the financial markets and
by the economic development of the issuers, who are themselves affected bath by the overall situation
of the global economy and by the econcmic and political conditions prevailing in each country,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(ayMarket risk (continned)

The Series Trust 15 exposed (o markel nsk on its mvestments which are VVF shares. In consideration
of VVF's investment objectives, the value of VVF's assets is clogely relateditothe evolution of a given
strategy, markets or assels. As a consequence, there is a polential risk arising from the evolution and
fluctuation of the strategy, markets or assets, and investments in VVE are as well subject to the same
market flucinations.

The Manager of the Investee Fund diversifies and orgamizes the Investee Fund's underlying
investments into broadly defined investment strategies or “categories”. Categories may include, but
are not limited to the following:

2019 el 85
Vietnam
Listed equity securities #3.46% 94,07%%
Cther liquid assets 12.93% 5938
Luxembourg
Listed equity securities 3.56% -
Total 100, 0% 100, 00%

Asset allocationamong the varous strateges 15 determuned solely by the Manager. From time bo time,
the Series Trust may invest a significant amount of its assets in one, of in a small mumber of, such
categories. There are nosignificant positions in one issuer, and there is no leverage in VVF.

The Manager manages the Series Trust's exposure by diversifying the underlving investments with
different risks and managing the exposure according to different market environments, The market
risk on all of the Investee Fund’s investments is managed by the Manager by taking a long-term
mvestment honzon in a diversified portfoho without any restriction regarding the mdustry sector or
the geographic location, employing qualitative and quantitative analysis in the due diligence process.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {cominued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

The asset allocation of VVF's portfalio by industry sector is as follows:

2019 2018
Haolding and finance companies 17.79% 13.24%
Banks and other credit institutions 14.54% 8.78%
Building and building materials L0.46% 12.08%%
Transporiation T.31% 11.38%
Internet and software services 6.73% 5.94%
Mechanical engineering and industrial equipment 6.64% 7.15%%
Precious siones and metals 3.58% 4. 7%
Healtheare, education & social services 3.56% -
Real estate 3.19% 0.76%
Miscellaneous consumer gools 3.06% 8.75%
Miscellaneons senaces 2.61% 3.28%
il 2.39% T.28%
Tobacco and alcohol 2.27% 2.31%
Energy and water supply 1.67% -
Chemicals 1.22% 3.96%%
Pharmacentical and cosmetics indusry - 3.58%
Agriculture and fishing - 0.81%
Total investment in equily securities 87.02% 94.07T%
Other liquid assets 12.98% 5.93%
Total net assels 100.00%0 100,00

Foreign currency msk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of fimancial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. Units issued by the Series Trust are denominated in US Dollars
and units are only ssued and redeemed in that cumency, The majonity of the assets of the Senes Trost
are invested in VVF shares which are denominated in US Dallars.

The Semes Trs is exposed to foreign cumency nisk to the extent that the VVE shares have exposure
1o cumency nsk as the underlving assets to which they are hnked are traded mn local cumrencies.
Exchange rate flucuations and local eurrency devaluation could lave a material effect on the value
of the VVF shares, which are expressed in US Dollars,

At 30 April 2019, majority of the Series Trust's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in

TS0, Howewver, the Series Trust also has exposure to currency nsk becanse it has assets and liabilities
denominated in cwrencies other than the US Dollar,
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(b) Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10¢%% strengthening of the US Dollar against the following cwrencies at 30 April 2019 (2018: 10%4)
would have increased/decreased net assets by the amouris shown below, This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remein constant.

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Net Assels
IPY 4 4
GRP 258 272

A 10% weakening of the US Dollar against the above cumrency at 30 April 201% would have had the
equeal bt opposite effect on the above cumencies 1o the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

These investors whose firancial assets are measured in cumency other than the US Dollar will be
exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Even when the net asset value of units of the Series
Trust is greater than the principal initially invested in US Dollars, the net asset value may lave
decreased in terms of the investors” cumrencies,

Price risk

Price risk anses mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held, which are
classified as *financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™. It represents the potential loss the
Series Trust might suffer throngh holding markel positions in the face of price movemenis.

Price rigk of the Series Trust arises from price fluctuations of the VVF Shares. These price fuctuations
will be as a result of changes in the volatility of the underlving investments of VVF. These fluctuations
will be reflected in the price of the VVF shares and will affect the Series Trust's net asset value.

The price of the VVF shares is quoted and available for trading om a daily basizs, While there has been
trading activity in the year it should be noted that the VVF shares are only available to a restricted
market. Other classes of shares in Fornm One-VOG Partners Vietnam Fund imvest into the same poal
of assets but are subject to different fee and markating structures,

The return on the units depends on changes invalue of the underlying investments of the VVF chares.
The trading price of the units nay vary considerably before the maturity date due, among other things,
to fluctuations in the price of the underlying imvestments of the VVF shares and other evends. The
umnits are not equivalent to investing directly in the underlying investments of VVF.

A 5% (2018 3%) increase in the market price of the VVF shares at 30 April 2019, with all cther
variables held constant, will increase the Series Trst's net asset value and profits by approximately
UUSS 768,043 (2018: USS1,030,120). A 5%6{2013: 3%} decrease in the market price of the VVF shares
at 30 April 2019, with all other variables held constant, will decrease the Series Trust’s net asset value
and profits by approximately USS Te8,043 (2018: US51,030, 1200, This sensitivity analysis represents
management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible change.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

(a) Market risk (continned)
Price visk (continued)
Some limitations of sensitivity analysis are:
# the market price risk information 18 a relative estimate of risk rather than a precize and
accurale umber,
» the market price information represents a hyvpothetical outcome and is not intended o be
predictive; and
+  future market conditions can vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

Interest rate risk

Imierest raie risk is the risk that the value of financial instromenis and future cash flows will flucinate
ag a resnlt of changes in market interest rates.

The Series Trust's financial asset= at fair value through profit or loss are not exposed to any significant
interest rate risk. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been included

The Series Trust 12 exposed o interest rate nsk on it cash and cazh equivalents, which are placed in
interest bearing accounts. The cash and cash equivalents held at 30 April 2019 amounted to 1.39%
(2018:4.27%) of the Series Trust's net as=e value. The sensitivity to changes ininterest rates on these
amounts and therr consequent impact of the Series Trusts net asset value is considered not to be
material .

() Credit risk

Credit risk arises from financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with financial
wstituions and banks, Credit nisk relates to the extent o which failures by counterparties to discharge
their obligations could reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial instruments on hand as

at the reporting date.

As of 30 April 2019, all of the assets including cash and cash equivalent of the Series Trust are held
by the Custodian which is The Bank of New York Mellon in segregated accounts. The Series Trusgt is
exposed (o credit nsk of the Costodian. The Bank of Mew York Mellon has a credit rating of Al with
Moody®s and AA- with Fitch on 30 April 201% and 2018.

Finaneial assets subject so IFRS 9 5 impairment require ments

The Series Trust's financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are only
cash and cash equivalents. Al 30 April 2019, the total of cash and cash equivalents was US$212,420,
on which no loss allowance lad been provided (2018 total of USS875,978, on which no loss had been
incurred). There is not considered to be any concentration of cred risk within these assels. WNo assets
are considered impaired and no amounts have been written off in the period.

Finaneial assets not subfect to IFRS 95 impairment vequirements

The Series Trust is exposed to credit risk on its fimancial instruments. They are not subject 1o IFRS
9"z impairment requirements as they are measured a1 FVPL. The carrying value of these assets, under
both 1AS 3% (2018) and IFRS 9 (2019) represent the Series Trost's maximum exposure to credit risk
on financial instruments not subject tothe [FR S 9 impairment requirements on the respective reponting
dates. Hemce, no separate maximmim exposure to credit nisk disclosure is provided for these
NS ruments.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Series Trust will encounter difficulty in raising funds (o meet
commitments associated with financial aseets, Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value.

Utits may be submitted for repurchasze at the option of unitholders as at each repurchase day which is
the 20th calendar day of each month and'or such other day or days as the Manager, after consultation
with the Trustee, may from time (o time determing in respect of the Senes Trod, Investment of the
Series Trust's or VVF's assets in relatively illiguid investments, if any, may restrict the ability to
dispose of the investments at a price and time that either wishes 1o do so. As of 30 April 2019, neither
the Senes Trust nor VVEF has assets in relatively illiquid investments,

AL 30 April 2019 the Series Trust held approcamately 27.25% (2018 24.2%5) of the total investment
in Forum One-VOG Partners Vietnam Fund,

A summary of the analyses is as follows:
Greater than Grester than
I month, 3 months,
L ess than less than 3 less than 1 More than

Asat 30 April 2019 I month months Vear 1 year Total
Lss Uss Uss Uss Uss
Financlal assets
Fimancial assets @ FVPL 15,360,854 - - - 15,360,854
Cash and cash
equivalents 212420 - = - 212420
Total finandal asseis 15573274 - = - 15573274

Financial liabilities

Redemptions payable 116,952 - - - 116,952
Accounts payvable and

accrued liabilities 122,187 4,983 38,900 % 166,070
Total financial liabilities 230139 4,983 38,900 - 283,022
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)
(¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

Greater than Grester than

1 momnth, 3 monithes,
Less than less than 3 less than 1 More than
Asal 30 Apnl 2018 1 month months VEar 1 year Total
LI5S Uss Lss Uss USs

Financial assets
Available-for-sale

financial assets 20,602,308 - - - 20,602,308
Cazh and cash

equivalents 875,978 - - - 375,978
Total fMinand al assels 21478376 - - - 21,478,376
Fimancial liabilities
Redemptions payable 802920 - - - 802,920
Acconnts payable and

accried liabilities 113,904 1,233 40,050 5 155,187
Total financial liabilities 216,824 1,233 40,050 - 958,107

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Marager is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the management
of the investment and re-investment of the assets of the Series Trust, the exercise of the power to
borrow money in respect of the Series Trust, declare and direct the Trestee (o make distributions or
interim distributions to the unitholders owt of the income and/or the capital of the Series Trust and for
the issue and repurchase of units of the Series Trust.

The Trustee is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Series Trust and for keeping the register of unitholders.

All the related parties are entitled to receive fees and expenses out of the assels of the Senes Trust.
Dretails of these fees are set out in Note 5 (o the financial statements,

15. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Series Trust to comprise the following:

¢ The net proceeds from subscriptions for and redemptions of umits of the Series Trust, plus
¢ Changes in the fair value of fimncial assets at FVPL; plus
« N results from operations.

The Series Trust invests virtually all of its asses in accordance with the imestment objective (Note 1)
of the Series Trust and the investment management policy is non-discretionary.

There are no regulatory or statulory capital requirements to which the Series Trust miust comply.
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PRECIOUS TRUST - VIETNAM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 30 Apnl 2019

16, EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING DATE

Subsequent to 30 April 2019, the Series Trust has recorded redemptions of US3337,180 as of 27
August 2019

= APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and Manager on 27
August 2019.
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2019
15,236,309.17 1,622,057,474
350,775.63 37,343,574
14,885,533.54 1,584,713,901

274,823

54.16 5,766
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750,000 7,985
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2014 10 750,000
2015 10 750,000
2016 10 750,000
2017 10 750,000
2018 10 750,000
2019 10 750,000
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1Q EQ 2019 10 EQ
4,000

90

2019 12

478,659,837.56

74,548,592.73

167,851,284.93

114,914,671,950
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2018 2017
2,776,023 295,535 2,997,260 319,088

108,904 11,594 394,868 42,038

2,884,927 307,129 3,392,128 361,126

(2,009,880) (213,972)  (2,274,337) (242,126)

875,047 93,158 1,117,791 119,000

875,047 93,158 1,117,791 119,000

11 750,000 79,845 750,000 79,845
125,047 13,313 367,791 39,155

875,047 93,158 1,117,791 119,000

2019 30
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2018 2017
3,563,356 379,355 3,709,443 394,907
3,563,356 379,355 3,709,443 394,907

(3,303,296) (351,669)  (3,173,393) (337,839)

251,597 26,785 (137,917) (14,683)
511,657 54,471 398,133 42,385
14 1 16 2
(4,415) (470) (3,374) (359)
(4,401) (469) (3.358) (357)
507,256 54,002 394,775 42,028
507,256 54,002 394,775 42,028

124/191



EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 EQ
2018 12 31

2017 750,000 79,845 1,473,016 156,817 2,223,016 236,662

394,775 42,028 394,775 42,028

394,775 42,028 394,775 42,028

(1,500,000)  (159,690) (1,500,000)  (159,690)

(1,500,000)  (159,690) (1,500,000)  (159,690)

2017 12 31 750,000 79,845 367,791 39,155 1,117,791 119,000

2018 750,000 79,845 367,791 39,155 1,117,791 119,000

507,256 54,002 507,256 54,002

507,256 54,002 507,256 54,002

(750,000)  (79,845)  (750,000)  (79,845)

(750,000)  (79,845)  (750,000)  (79,845)

2018 12 31 750,000 79,845 125,047 13,313 875,047 93,158
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2018 2017
12 468,437 49,870 1,592,589 169,547
468,437 49,870 1,592,589 169,547

14 1 16 2

14 1 16 2

(4,415) (470) (3,374) (359)

(750,000) (79,845)  (1,500,000) (159, 690)

(754,415) (80,315)  (1,503,374) (160,049)

(285,964) (30,444) 89,231 9,500

394,868 42,038 305,637 32,538

108,904 11,594 394,868 42,038

108,904 11,594 394,868 42,038
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@
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)

2018 2017

( ) ( )
(251,597) 137,917
5,417 32,500

2018 2017 12 31 10 EQ
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2018 2017
( ) ( )
986,165 1,290,550
986,165 1,290,550
@)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
14 16
14 16
(b)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
(4,415) (3,374)
(4,415) (3,374)
()
2018 2017
( ) ( )
14 16
(4,415) (3,374)
(4,401) (3,358)

2035
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2018 2017
( ) ( )

317,110 356,159

2,458,913 2,632,851

- 8,250

2,776,023 2,997,260

2018 2017

( ) ( )

2,007,320 2,268,663

2,560 5,674

2,009,880 2,274,337
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2018 2018 2017 2017
( ) ( )
317,110 356,159
2,458,913 2,641,101
108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
(2,560) (5.674)
(2,007,320) (2.268,663)
(2,009, 880) (2,274,337)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000

750,000 750,000
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12
(€))
2018 2017
( ) ( )
507,256 394,775
4,401 3,358
511,657 398,133
221,237 545,350
(264,457) 649,106
468,437 1,592,589
(b)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
(288,519) 74,201
2,555 15,030
394,868 305,637
12 31 108,904 394,868
©
2018 2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
13
2017 12 31 2016
25
2018 18 1Q
EQ

10 EQ
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14
102 33.1
15
2019 25 10 EQ
10 EQ
16
10 EQ
2018 18 10 EQ
100 10 EQ
75008 68

2018 12 31
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note US$ US$
Current assets
Debtors 8 2,776,023 2,997,260
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 9 (2,009,880) (2,274,337)
Net current assets 875,047 1,117,791
Net assets 875,047 1,117,791
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained earnings 125,047 367,791
Total equity 875,047 1,117,791

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 15 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30 April

2019 and signed for on its behalf by:

[Signature] [Signature]

Director Director
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(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of comprehensive income
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2018 2017
Note US$ US$
Turnover 3,563,356 3,709,443
Cost of sales - -
Gross Profit 3,563,356 3,709,443
Administrative expenses (3,303,296) (3,173,393)
Other operating gains/(losses) 251,597 (137,917)
Operating profit 4 511,657 398,133
Interest receivable and similar income 6a 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges 6b (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense 6C (4,401) (3,358)
Profit onordinary activities before taxation 507,256 394,775
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 507,256 394,775

All activities relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of changes in equity
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Called up share Retained
capital earnings Total
Us$ Us$ Us$
Balance at 1 January 2017 750,000 1,473,016 2,223,016
Profit for the year - 394,775 394,775
Total comprehensive income for the year - 394,775 394,775
Dividends - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity h (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Balance at 1 January 2018 750,000 367,791 1,117,791
Profit for the year - 507,256 507,256
Total comprehensive income for the year - 507,256 507,256
Dividends - (750,000) (750,000)
Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity B (750, 000) (750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 750,000 125,047 875,047
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of cash flows
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2018 2017

Note US$ US$
Net cash from operating activities 12 468,437 1,592,589
Net cash generated from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 14 16
Net cash from investing activities 14 16
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid (4,415) (3,374)
Dividends paid (750,000) (1,500,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (754,415) (1,503,374)
Net_(decrease)/lncrease in cash and cash (285,964) 89,231
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 394,868 305,637
year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 108,904 394,868
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 108,904 394,868

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of these financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

@

(b)

Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore
Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the” Company” ) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102,“ The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (* FRS 102" ).

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The company has adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

The Company has early adopted the amendments of FRS102 as a result of the triennial review, which
are effective from 1 January 2019.

Consolidation

Following the sale of 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known
as First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands B. V.
(formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B_V.), the Company is controlled by FCPI Astorg V, and its
results are included within the consolidated financial statements of Saphilux Sarl.

These financial statements are the Company®s separate financial statements.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Foreign currency

( ) Functional and presentational currency
The Company®s functional and presentational currency is United States Dollars.

( ) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when
fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement within’ Other operating (losses)/gains."

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of
services rendered from the provision of administration, corporate management, trustee services
together with ancillary services, net of any discounts and rebates al lowed by the Company, and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash received in
advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the period to which it relates.

() Management recharge income/expense

Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred by/from
subsidiaries and other group entities during the year.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

( ) Management fees

Management fees are received from the investment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to 0.2%
per quarter of either the product of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue at a
Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the
Offering Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some cases
these management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also exists.

( ) Consultancy fees

©)

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for services provided by
the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees are
determined on a case by case basis.

Administrative expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and included within operating expenditure.

( ) Management charge

Q)

@

Under the terms of a Group Services Agreement, a management charge is paid to 1Q EQ Group Services
(Jersey) Limited (formerly known as Moore Group Services Limited), a related party, as
compensation for certain management services provided to the Company. The management charge is
presented in the profit and loss account within operating costs.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligationas a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Financial instruments

The company has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial

instruments.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

( ) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for
objective evidence of impairment. IT an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the
asset"s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profitor loss.

IT there is decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does
not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been
recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset
are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ownership, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical
ability tounilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional
restrictions.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

( ) Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, included trade and other payables, and amounts owed to group
undertakings are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future
payments (net of directly attributable issue costs) discounted at the market rate of interest.
Issue costs are recognised in the income statement over the term of the debt on an effective
interest rate basis. Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade
payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

( ) Offsetting

Q)

()

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial
statements when there is a legal ly enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and other distributions to the Company®s shareholders are recognised as a liability in
the financial statements in the period inwhich the dividends and other distributions are approved
by the shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

@

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same
Group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of
the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the
Company financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continual ly evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

( ) Accrued income

Accrued income is made up of fees accrued to the balance sheet date but yet to be billed which are
deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by management to assess the recoverability.

( ) Provisions

Provisions are made up of debtors which are not deemed to be recoverable. Judgement is used by
management to assess the recoverability of debtors.

145/191



1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

4

@

(b)

Operating profit
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2018 2017
Us$ Us$

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (251,597) 137,917
Directors fees 5,417 32,500

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 the audit fee of the Company was borne by 1Q EQ Group
Management (Isle of Man) Limited (formerly known as First Names Management Limited), an associated

company.

Employees and directors

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or

payable by the Company or other affiliated companies to key management for employee services is

shown below:

2018 2017
Us$ Us$

Salaries and other short term benefits

986,165 1,290,550

986,165 1,290,550

Net interest expense

Interest received and similar income

2018 2017
Us$ Us$
Bank interest receivable 14 16
Total interest receivable and similar income 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges
2018 2017
Uss$ Us$
Other (4,415) (3,374)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (4,415) (3,374)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

6 Net interest expense (continued)

(c) Net interest expense
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2018 2017

Uss Us$

Interest receivable and similar income 14 16
Interest payable and similar charges (4,415) (3,374)
Net interest expense (4,401) (3,358)

7 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either income

or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance in Bermuda

exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035.

8 Debtors

2018 2017

Us$ Us$

Trade debtors and accrued income 317,110 356,159
Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,458,913 2,632,851
Prepayments - 8,250
2,776,023 2,997,260

Amounts due from group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and

are repayable on demand.

9 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2018 2017

Us$ Us$

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,007,320 2,268,663
Accruals and deferred income 2,560 5,674
2,009,880 2,274,337

Amounts due to group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand.
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10 Financial instruments

The company has the fol lowing financ
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uda) Limited)

ial instruments:

2018 2018 2017 2017
Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
Financial assets that are debt
instruments measured at
amortised cost
Trade receivables 317,110 356,159
Other receivables 2,458,913 2,641,101
Cash and cash equivalents 108,904 394,868
2,884,927 3,392,128
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Accruals and deferred income (2,560) (5,674)
Amounts owed to group
undertakings (2,007,320) (2,268,663)
(2,009,880) (2,274,337)
11 Share capital
2018 2017
us$ Uss$

Authorised,
1,000,000 common shares of US$1 each

Issued
750,000 common shares of US$1 each

1,000,000 1,000,000

750,000 750,000
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

12 Notes to the statement of cash flows

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2018 2017

Uss Us$

Profit for the financial year 507,256 394,775

Adjustments for:

Net interest expense 4,401 3,358

Operating profit 511,657 398,133
Working capital movements:

Decrease in debtors and prepayments 221,237 545,350

(Decrease)/increase in payables (264,457) 649,106

Cash flow from operating activities 468,437 1,592,589

b)  Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds

2018 2017

Uss Us$

(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (288,519) 74,201

Translation difference 2,555 15,030

Net funds at 1 January 394,868 305,637

Net funds at 31 December 108,904 394,868

c) Analysis of change in net funds

At1l Cash Exchange 31 December

January 2018 flows movements 2018

Us$ uss Uss Us$

Cash at bank 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904

Total 394,868 (288,519) 2,555 108,904
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

13 Commitments

As at 31 December 2017 the Company"s share capital had a charge over it, granted by the Company*s
then ultimate holding company shareholders, in favour of GLAS Trust Corporation Limited as
Security Agent on behal f of the Secured Parties, in order to provide security for a Facility
Agreement which had been entered into on 25 May 2016 in relation to the Group®s previous bank
facilities.

On 18 July 2018, the Company"s previous ultimate controlling party sold its holding in the
Company*s previous ultimate holding company, 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known as
First Names Holdings Limited), to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG)
Netherlands B.V.) and at this time the charge over the Company"s share was released as part of the

transaction.
14 Related party transactions

Transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries within the Group are not disclosed as the Company
has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS102.

17 Subsequent events

On 25 March 2019 the SGG Group re-branded to 1Q EQ Group and the majority of the entity names in the
group have been changed. The Company has changed its name to 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited.

15 Controlling parties

The Company*"s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group Holdco (Jersey) Limited (formerly known
as Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersey

On 18 July 2018, 100% of the shareholding in 1Q EQ Holdings (Group 10M) Limited (formerly known as
First Names Holdings Limited), the previous ultimate parent, was sold to 1Q EQ (FNG) Netherlands
B.V. (formerly known as SGG (FNG) Netherlands B.V.). Following the acquisition, the ultimate
controlling party is FCPI Astorg V, a French closed ended col lective investment scheme in which no
individual investor hold a controlling interest. The scheme is managed by Astorg Partners, a
Societe par actions simplifiee incorporated and existing under the laws of France, having its
registered office at 68 Rue du Faubourg Saint-Honore, 75008 Paris.
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
(formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

15 Controlling parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the ultimate holding company into which the results are consolidated is
Saphilux Sarl (a Luxembourg entity). The ultimate controlling party is FCPI Astorg V, a French
closed ended collective investment scheme inwhich no individual investor hold a controlling

interest.
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Independent Auditors” Report

The Trustee

Precious Trust - Vietnam Infrastructure Fund

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and a
Supplemental Trust Deed under laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Precious Trust - Vietnam Infrastructure Fund (the“ Series
Trust” ) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at 30 April 2019 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the management and administration information. Management is responsible
for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

183/191



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOo0oDOo0ooo00boo0gOoOoo(EesL86)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Series Trust"s financial reporting process.

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust"s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust"s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.
27 August 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®™S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1Q EQ MANAGEMENT BERMUDA LIMITED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS MOORE MANAGEMENT (BERMUDA) LIMITED)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 1Q EQ
Management Bermuda Limited (formerly known as Moore Management (Bermuda) Limited) (the “Company™)
as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™ (“FRS 102").

What we have audited
The Company”s financial statements comprise:

e the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*1SAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor”s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“ IESBA Code™) . We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the I1ESBA Code.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Directors” report and financial statements but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor"s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be material ly misstated. 1T, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company*”s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a
going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statementsor, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor”s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members as a body and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jersey, Channel Islands

1 May 2019
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